Ol PRavle

City Hall: 317 College St, Grand Prairie, Texas

MEETING AGENDA
Zoning Board of Adjustments and Appeals
August 19, 2019
BRIEFING: 6:30 P.M.

The staff will brief the board and preview the cases on tonight’s agenda. Board members will
have the opportunity to ask questions that may facilitate the meeting and the presentation of the
cases. No action will be taken during the briefing.

CALL TO ORDER: 7:00 P.M.

The Zoning Board of Adjustments and Appeals is appointed by the City Council to consider
variances, exceptions and appeals as prescribed by the City of Grand Prairie’s Unified Development
Code. In accordance with Section 211.009 of the Local Government Code of the State of Texas and
Article 1 of the Unified Development Code of the City of Grand Prairie, the concurring vote of
seven members of the Board is necessary to decide in favor of an applicant on any matter on which
the Board has jurisdiction. Members of the public may address the Board on items listed on the
agenda under Public Hearing Items.

INVOCATION:
APPROVAL OF MINUTES:
PUBLIC HEARING:
1. CASE NUMBER BA190813 (Council District 1). —Requesting a 300 square foot variance
from the 50 square foot limitation to allow for a 350 square foot LED video screen on a
building with non-static images, located at 2625 West Pioneer Parkway, legally described as

Lot 2, Sam’s Properties Addition, City of Grand Prairie, Tarrant County, Texas, zoned “LI”
Light Industrial District.

2. CASE NUMBER BA190803 (Council District 1). —Requesting a 150 square foot variance
from the 450 square foot area limitation, to allow for a 600 square foot accessory structure,
located at 209 Wright Boulevard legally described as Lot 34 Whittle Addition, City of
Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned “SF-3” Single-Family Three Residential
District.

3. CASE NUMBER BA190804 (Council District 6). —-Requesting a 46 square foot variance
from the 450 square foot limitation to allow for a 496 square foot accessory structure and a
special exception for siding material. Located at 1417 Nadine Lane legally described as Lot
100, Florence Hill 2, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned “PD-84" Planned




Zoning Board of Adjustments and Appeals Agenda August 19, 2019

Development 84 District.

4. CASE NUMBER BA190805 (Council District 4). —Requesting a special exception for a
rear yard carport, located at 5220 Brewster Court , legally described as Lot 52, Block 6,
Lake Parks West Addition, City of Grand Prairie, Tarrant County, Texas, zoned “PD- 267"
Planned Development 267 District.

5. CASE NUMBER BA190807 (Council District 2),
‘ 1. Requesting a 13 foot rear yard setback variance from the required 20 feet to allow
for an accessory structure 7 feet from the rear property line.
2. A 72 square foot variance from the 120 square foot size limitation outlined by “PD
2017 to allow for a 192 square foot accessory structure.
3. A 3 foot height variance from the 10 foot height limitation outlined by “PD 201 to
allow for a 13 foot tall accessory structure.
Located at 310 Nunez Drive, legally described as W % Lot 2, Block L, Sheffield Village
PH 4 Addition, City of Grand Prairie, Tarrant County, Texas, zoned “PD-201" Planned
Development 201 District.

6. CASE NUMBER BA190809 (Council District 3). -Requesting a 136 square foot variance,
from the 120 square foot maximum, outlined by “PD 120” to allow for a 256 square foot
accessory structure, located at 501 Stonchenge Drive, legally described as Lot 44, Block A,
Park Square 2 Rep Addition, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned “PD-120"
Planned Development 120 District.

7. CASE NUMBER BA190810 (Council District 4). —-Requesting a 10 foot rear yard setback
variance from the 30 foot build line, to allow for a porch 20 feet from the rear property line,
located at 2839 Ivy Glen Drive, legally described as Lot 49, Block I, Ivy Glen Addition,
City of Grand Prairie, Tarrant County, Texas, zoned “PD-278" Planned Development 278
District.

8. CASE NUMBER BA190812 {Council District 3). —Requesting a special exception for two
corrugated metal carports, located at 510 S Holiday Drive, legally described as Lot 21,
Block 16, Park Valley 2, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned “SF-3” Single-~
Family Three Residential District.

9. CASE NUMBER BA190811 (Council District 3).
1. Requesting a 62 square foot variance from the 750 square foot size limitation, to

allow for an 812 square foot detached garage.
2. A 4 foot rear yard setback variance from the required 10 feet, to allow for a detached
garage and accessory structure 6 feet from the rear property line.
3. A special exception for the use of corrugated metal as building material.
Located at 706 E Springdale, legally described as Lot 5, Block 4, Lake Park Village 1
Addition, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned “SF-3” Single-Family Three
Residential District.

CITIZENS COMMENT:




Zoning Board of Adjustments and Appeals Agenda Augnust 19,2019

BOA RULES:

ADJOURNMENT:

In accordance with Chapter 551, Subchapter 6 of the Texas Government Code, V.T.C.A., the
Zoning Board of Adjustment and Appeals agenda was prepared on the 16th day of August

2019 at 5:00 p.m.

Posted By: Nyliah Acosta

The City Hall is wheelchair accessible. If you plan to attend this public meeting and you have a

disability that requires special arrangements, please call 972-237-8257 at least 24 hours in advance,
Reasonable accommodations will be made to assist your need




BA190813

2625 West Pioneer Parkway
Variance- LED Message Board

Sign
—_———
Zoning Board of Adjustments & Appeals: August 19, 2019
Case Manager: Nyliah Acosta
Owner/Applicant: Matthew Loh

—_——————— e
SUMMARY

Requesting a 300 square foot variance from the 50 square foot limitation to allow for a 350 square foot LED
video screen with non-static images on a building, located at 2625 West Pioneer Parkway, legally described
as Lot 2, Sam’s Properties Addition, City of Grand Prairie, Tarrant County, Texas, zoned “L” Light Industrial
District {Council District 1).

DISCUSSION

The applicant is requesting approval of a variance to allow for a 14x25 350 square foot LED message board
sign on an existing shopping center, known as Asia Times Square. Per Article 9 Sign Standards of the Unified
Development Code (UDC), electronic message signs are limited to 50 square feet and are only permitted on
monument signs. If approved, the applicant will also need approval from TxDOT and the Federal Aviation,
Administration (FAA). The property fronts W Pioneer Parkway, which is approximately 587 feet from a
TxDOT right of way, and is in close proximity to Highway 303. This area is regulated by the Highway
Beautification Act which controls outdoor advertising sign size, fighting, and spacing. The applicant will be
required to obtain a commercial sign license from the TxDOT ROW Division and pay the annual fee
associated with the program. In addition, the applicant will possibly need approval from the FAA, as it is in
the flight path of the Grand Prairie Municipal Airport.

The surrounding area impacted by the sign is largely retail and industrial uses. The use of the sign will
include advertising and hosting events such as outdoor movies on the weekend. This will act as a place
making mechanism for the Asia Times Square patrons. The applicant is currently making improvements on
the property to repurpose the excess parking by planting trees, and creating a court with seating, canopy
covers, and space for food trucks. The improvements the applicant is making will help foster the creation of
a community space for everyone to shop, eat and play. Overall the sign will aid in enhancing the area and
strengthening the community.

Subject to approval of this application, an approved building permit will be required prior to the final
inspection of the structure. As part of the building permit review process, Building Inspections will ensure
that the addition complies with all regulations.

— e (it of Grand Prairie

PAGE I of 2



PUBLIC NOTIFICATION

Legal notice of this item was published in the Fort Worth Star Telegram August 9 and August 18th.
Notices to property owners were placed in the City of Grand Prairie out-going-mail on August 9, 2019,
7 notices were sent, 0 were returned in favor, 0 opposed, and there is no homeowners association.

RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends Approval of the requested variance in BA190813 based on the following findings of fact:

1. The variances do not negatively impact the surrounding area and;

2. Approval of the permit will be contingent upon the applicant obtaining a commercial sign license
from TxDOT per the Highway Beautification Act, and approval from the Federal Aviation
Administration.

if the board chooses to grant the applicants request, he/she must abide to the following below:

1. Any construction or building allowed by this variance must conform to the requirements set forth
by the Unified Development Code, the 2015 International Building Code, the Grand Prairie
Municipal Code of Ordinances, city adopted fire codes and with other applicable regulatory
requirements administered and/or enforced by the state and federal government. If a building
permit has not been applied for or issued within a ninety (90) day period or as the Board may
specifically grant, the variance shall be deemed waived; and all rights there under terminated.

City of Grand Prairie
PAGE 2 of 2




This data has baen compled by the Ciy of Grand
Prairie [T/AS depatiment. Varfous official and
unoficial sources were used to gather this
information, Every effort wes made to ensure
e accutacy of ths data, howsver, no guarantes
is given orimpled as Io the accuracy of said data.

~a

A
b

k:‘lg‘ffﬂ:i:‘

Dale: 8/8/2019 Time: 12:40.55PM







R e i i (0 i o SRS o e, e B







BA190803

209 Wright Boulevard

Variance — Accessory Structure

Size

Zoning Board of Adjustments & Appeals: August 19, 2019
Case Manager: * Nyliah Acosta
Owner/Applicant: Isaias Contreras

SUMMARY

Requesting a 150 square foot variance from the 450 square foot size limitation to allow for a 600 square
foot accessory structure, located at 209 Wright Boulevard legally described as Lot 34 Whittle Addition, City
of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned “SF-3” Single-Family Three Residential District (Council District

1).
DISCUSSION

A single-family dwelling currently sits on the property; the applicant is requesting approval of an oversized
canopy structure not attached to the primary structure. The structure will be a 30x20x15’ tall patio cover,
located in the rear yard.

Subject to approval of this application, an approved building permit will be required prior to the final
inspection of the structure. As part of the building permit review process, Building Inspections will ensure
that the addition complies with all regulations.

PUBLIC NOTIFICATION
Legal notice of this item was published in the Fort Worth Star Telegram August Sth and August 18th.
Notices to property owners were placed in the City of Grand Prairie out-going-mail on August 9, 2019.

38 notices were sent, 0 were returned in favor, 0 opposed and 0 calls were received, and there is no
homeowners association,

FINDINGS
As authorized in Section 1.11.7.4 of the UDC, the ZBA may grant variances and exceptions provided the

following findings are met:

A Such variance or exception will not substantially or permanently injure the appropriate use of
adjacent property in the same district.

City of Grand Prairie

PAGE I of 3




Staff Evaluation: Approving such variance will not injure the appropriate use of adjacent property in
the same district.

B. Such variance or exception will not adversely affect the health, safety or general welfare of the
public.

Staff Evaluation: Staff suggests that the variance will not adversely affect the health, safety or
general welfare of the public.

C. Such variance or exception will not be contrary to the public interest; and such variance or
exception will not authorize the operation of a use other than those uses specifically authorized for
the district in which the property for which the variance is sought is located.

Staff Evaluation: The proposed variance, if approved, will not authorize the operation of a use other
than those afready aflowed in “SF-3” Single-Family Three Residential District.

D. Such variance or exception will be in harmony with the spirit and purpose of this ordinance.

Staff Evaluation: The granting of this variance will allow the applicant to construct a canopy, and be
in compliance with the City of Grand Prairie’s UDC. Staff suggests that the variance is in harmony
with the spirit and purpose of this ordinance.

E. Such variance or exception will not alter the essential character of the district in which is located
the property for which the variance is sought.

Staff Evaluation: Approving the variance will not alter the essential character of the district in
which the subject property is located. The structures will be located in the rear yord and can’t be
seen from the front yard.

F. Such variance or exception will not substantially weaken the general purposes of the zoning
regulations established for the district in which the property is located.

Staff Evaluation: Staff believes that such variance will not weaken the general purpose of the
underlying zoning districts regufations. Staff observed thirteen (13) accessory structures within o
300ft buffer from the subject property four {4) of which were permitted {104, 115 Wright Bivd, 122,
218 E Shady Grove Rd).

G. The plight of the owner of the property for which the variance or exception is sought is due to
unigue circumstances existing on the property, including but not limited to the area, shape or slope,
and the unigue circumstances were not created by the owner of the property and are not merely
financial, and are not due to or the result of general conditions in the district in which the property
is located.

Staff Evaluation: Staff cannot find that the property owner has @ hardship that is o unique
circumstance of the property.

= ity of Grand Praivie
PAGE2 of 3



H. The variance or exception is not a self-created hardship.
Staff Evaluation: Staff finds that the hardship is self-created.

RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends Approval of BA190803 based on the following findings of fact:

1. Approving such variance will not injure the appropriate use of adjacent property in the same district
and;
2. Such variance does not alter the characteristic of the neighborhood.

If the board chooses to grant the applicants request, he/she must abide to the following below:

Any construction or building allowed by this variance must conform to the requirements set forth by the
Unified Development Code, the 2015 International Building Code, the Grand Prairie Municipal Code of
Ordinances, city adopted fire codes and with other applicable regulatory requirements administered
and/or enforced by the state and federal government. If a building permit has not been applied for or
issued within a ninety {90} day pericd or as the Board may specifically grant, the special exceptions shall
be deemed waived; and all rights there under terminated.

City of Grand Prairie

PAGE 3 of 3




Py T

(AR
e )

Prairie M/GS deparment. Varicus official and
unoficial sources were usedio gather ths
information, Every efort was made to ensure
the accuracy of this data, hovever, no quarantee
isgiven orimpEed as b the accuracy of sad data




it 9 et 4 a8 i 4T ek

1 &

Ky
<k

i _ ” e

.
e |ﬁ

PG .,.Smffg bL0oT



BA190804

1417 Nadine Lane

Variance — Accessory Structure
Size

Special Exception- Material

Zoning Board of Adjustments & Appeals: August 19, 2019
Case Manager: Nyliah Acosta
Owner/Applicant: Johnny Romero
SUMMARY

Requesting a 46 square foot variance from the 450 square foot limitation to allow for a 496 square foot
accessory structure and a special exception to allow for wood or viny! siding material. Located at 1417
Nadine Lane legally described as Lot 100, Florence Hill 2, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned
“PD-84" Planned Development 84 District {(Council District 6).

DISCUSSION

The applicant is requesting approval of a 46 square foot variance and material exception. A single-family
dwelling currently sits on the property. The property owner is seeking a variance that would allow them to
construct a 31x16x9’ tall (496 square feet) accessory structure, On 8/6/2018 the applicant was approved for
a permit to pour a concrete slab. The accessory structure will be placed on top of the existing concrete slab.

Subject to approval of this application, an approved building permit will be required prior to the final
inspection of the structure. As part of the building permit review process, Building Inspections will ensure

that the addition complies with all regulations.

PUBLIC NOTIFICATION

Legal notice of this item was published in the Fort Worth Star Telegram August 9th and August 18th.
Notices to property owners were placed in the City of Grand Prairie out-going-mail on August 9, 2019,
34 notices were sent, 0 were returned in favar, 0 opposed, and there is no homeowners association,

FINDINGS

As authorized in Section 1.11.7.4 of the UDC, the ZBA may grant variances and exceptions provided the
following findings are met:

City of Grand Pruirie

PAGE I of 3




Such variance or exception will not substantially or permanently injure the appropriate use of
adjacent property in the same district.

Staff Evaluation: Staff believes that such variance wifl not substantialfy or permanently injure the
appropriate use of adjacent property in the same district.

Such variance or exception will not adversely affect the health, safety or general welfare of the
public.

Staff Evaluation: Staff suggests that the variance wifl not adversely affect the health, safety or
general welfare of the public.

Such variance or exception will not be contrary to the public interest; and such variance or
exception will not authorize the operation of a use other than those uses specifically authorized for
the district in which the property for which the variance is sought is located.

Staff Evaluation: The proposed variance, if approved, will not authorize the operation of a use other
than those already allowed in “PD-84” Planned Development 84 District.

Such variance or exception will be in harmony with the spirit and purpose of this ordinance.

Staff Evaluation: The granting of this variance will allow the homeowner to construct a storage
shed. Accessory structures are allowed and staff believes granting the variance does not disrupt the
spirit of the ordinance.

Such variance or exception will not alter the essential character of the district in which is located
the property for which the variance is sought.

Staff Evaluation: Stoff does not believe that such variance will alter the essential character of the
district as the structure will be focated in the back yard. If approved, the accessory structure would
not be visible from street view. In addition, staff noted that there were seventeen (17) other homes
with accessory structures within a 300 foot buffer, many of which are metol. 1314, 1402, 1405
Nadine Lane and 1314, 1509, and 1518 Sandra Lane all have permitted structures.

Such variance or exception will not substantially weaken the general purposes of the zoning
regulations established for the district in which the property is located.

Staff Evaluation: Staff befieves that such variance for an accessory structure will not substantially
weaken the general purpose of the underlying zoning district

The plight of the owner of the property for which the variance or exception is sought is due to
unique circumstances existing on the property, including but not limited to the area, shape or slope,
and the unique circumstances were not created by the owner of the property and are not merely
financial, and are not due to or the result of general conditions in the district in which the property
is located.

w City of Grand Prairie

PAGE 2 of 3




Staff Evaluation: Staff cannot find that the property owner has a hardship that is a unique
circumstance of the property.

H. The variance or exception is not a self-created hardship.
Staff Evaluation: Staff finds that the hardship is not self-created.

RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends Approval of the requested variance and special exception in BA190804 based on the
following findings of fact:

1. The accessory structure does not detract from the character of the neighborhood, and are

common; and
2. There are seventeen other accessory structures within the 300 ft buffer.

If the board chooses to grant the applicants request, he/she must abide to the following below:

Any construction or building allowed by this variance and special exception must conform to the
requirements set forth by the Unified Development Code, the 2015 International Building Code, the
Grand Prairie Municipal Code of Ordinances, city adopted fire codes and with other applicable regulatory
requirements administered and/or enforced by the state and federal government. If a building permit has
not been applied for or issued within a ninety (90) day period or as the Board may specifically grant, the
variance and special exception shail be deemed waived; and all rights there under terminated.

City of Grand Prairie

PAGE 3 of 3



“%l1509!

BA1 90804[ 1417 Nadine Lane Da!e:Bl72019 TLme:12:15:1F’M

This data has been compled by the Cty of Grand d
Praitie IT/GS deparment. Various official and
unoficial sources were tsed lo gather ths 4
information, Every elfort was made to ensure EI
e acuracy of Ihis data, however, no guarantee  grogg

T EX A S

is given orimpied as o the accuracy of said data.




s BLGURUS UFUALLAS
COUNTY, TEXAS.

NADINE LANE
REF. BRNG. (P.P.) FND 1/2" |R. FOR REF.
N 89'56’00" E 190.50" . b VoM, -
E ._.{fr T T B 5 =
% | e 3,
W N 89°51
381
. 92.2' : ?
0.9’ 30.0° S35 *—ﬁhi—l__—:_
T 30' B.L. (P.P.) ‘
BRICK E ' :
RESIDENCE o
NO. 1417
29.4' N s
0.3_'1; ’—“ﬁ’\)ﬁi‘i& — g — !
] 2.35
3]
i
r LOT 100 L
=)
n
o
29 %3
=]
z Ry
n
n w
2 ¥ IES f,q
2 ~ L2l
2> 'r'q
: 5
e (=)
E 7]
—] ‘-'\\
W o v s . /
! | AERI(.?:L E)SMT. &lu i
I .P.
| |
1 METAL & Q& (\Jt)\
b BUILDING & Q\ >
% (ON 5LAB) g rs c;é
7 N
5 : 20.5' ) l‘g\\}\ S =3
I 12.1'
| FRAME \\\Q};’Q
STORAGE VANV
:-(NG SLAB) -~ i RN
3 & O~
| & ot I
955995555555 I TR SN
KRR
oo o b
| SRR .
3 %) =t ~m -
;I 3 SR 20. % (f Lo~ T
>
| i e e R R I P ol
G . — T e e
[Ty s ol S D e e s ol =T
1 el o , S 89°56'00” W | 190.50° gfw T
| * sy b
| (PP WALTER F. OSBORNE AND -PEGGY SPILLERS s iy e
| ] LOTS ‘70-A A
5 ' WIFE, DIANA L. OSBORNE INST. NO. 20080204406 oPG
| e 28 VOL. 97049, PG. 3984 LOT | 69. R.D.CT. Sleg FLOREN
OL. 95169, PG. 5425 D.R.D.C.T. : gla®™ VOL. 8120
M.R.D.C.T. = M.R.L

shown hereon is within ths 100 Year

[ No. 485472 04450, Zone(s)
nce Rate Map,

. NOTES

1) All comers labeled as SET 1/2 |R. are 12"
stamped "RPLS 5310" sel for comer.

SUIVEVY ara nar st rolfeece e oo 8 1

iron rods with a yellow plastic cap

2) (P.P.) indicates that Bullding Lines, Easements, Rights-of-Way, etc., as shown on thic

|

A

o)



BA190805

5220 Brewster Court
Special Exception — Rear Yard
Carport

e s

Zoning Board of Adjustments & Appeals: August 19, 2019
Case Manager: Nyliah Acosta
Owner/Applicant: Hassan Alabir

SUMMARY

Requesting a special exception fora rear yard carport, located at 5220 Brewster Court , legally described as
Lot 52, Block 6, Lake Parks West Addition, City of Grand Prairie, Tarrant County, Texas, zoned “pD- 267"
Planned Development 267 District (Council District 4).

DISCUSSION
The applicant is requesting approval of a carport to be located in the rear yard. A single-family dwelling

currently sits on the property and the owner is proposing to build a 20x20x10’ tall (400 square foot) carport.
The carport will be only be accessible from the front drive way and will not be seen from the street.

Subject to approval of this application, an approved building permit will be required prior to the final
inspection of the structure. As part of the building permit review process, Building Inspections will ensure
that the addition complies with all regulations.

PUBLIC NOTIFICATION
Legal notice of this item was published in the Fort Worth Star Telegram August g™ and August 18",

Notices to property owners Were placed in the City of Grand Prairie out-going-mail on August o™ 2019.

21 notices were sent, 0 were returned in favor, O opposed, and there was no response from Lake Parks
West Homeowners Association.

FINDINGS

As authorized in Section 1.11.7.4 of the UDC, the ZBA may grant variances and exceptions provided the
following findings are met:

A Such variance or exception will not substantially or permanently injure the appropriate use of

_____________—__———————ﬁ City of Grand Prairie
PAGE 1 of 3




adjacent property in the same district.

Staff Evaluation: Approving such variance will not substantially or permanently injure the
appropriate use of adjacent property in the same district.

B. Such variance or exception will not adversely affect the health, safety or general weifare of the
public.

Staff Evaluation: Staff suggests that the special exception will not adversely affect the heaith, safety
or general welfare of the public.

C. Such variance or exception will not be contrary to the public interest; and such variance or
exception will not authorize the operation of a use other than those uses specifically authorized for
the district in which the property for which the variance is sought is located.

Staff Evaluation: The proposed special exception, if approved, will not authorize the operation of o
use other than those already allowed in “PD-267" Planned Devefopment- 267 District.

B. Such variance or exception will be in harmony with the spirit and purpose of this ordinance.

Staff Evaluation: The granting of this special exception will allow the homeowner to protect their
vehicle from inclement weather. Staff suggests that the exception will not harm the spirit and
ptrpose of this ordinance.

E. Such variance or exception will not alter the essential character of the district in which is located
the property for which the variance is sought.

Staff Evaluation: Staff observed one other rear yard carport less than 850 feet from the subject
property at 2828 Gillespie Lane {a permit was approved 6/27/2008 to extend the concrete driveway,
but no permit was pulled for the structure). Another property on 5232 Brewster Ct constructed a
permitted (approved 5/8/2009} detached garage in the rear yard. The homes are rear entry garages
accessible from the front driveway, and due to the lots being over 70 feet wide they can
accommodate carports, or detached garages at the rear of the property tucked behind the house to
shield visibifity of additional structures from street view.

F. Such variance or exception will not substantially weaken the general purposes of the zoning
regulations established for the district in which the property is located.

Staff Evaluation: Staff believes that such special exception will not substantially weaken the general
purpose of the underlying zoning district

G. The plight of the owner of the property for which the variance or exception is sought is due to
unique circumstances existing on the property, including but not limited to the area, shape or slope,
~-and the unique circumstances were not created by the owner of the property and are not merely
financial, and are not due to or the result of general conditions in the district in which the property

is located,

— e (it of Girand Prairie

PAGE 2 of 3



Staff Evaluation: Staff cannot find that the property owner has @ haordship that is a unigue
circumstance of the property.

H. The variance or exception is not a self-created hardship.
Staff Evaluation: Staff finds that the hardship is self-created.

RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends Approval of the requested special exception in BA190805 based on the following
findings of fact:

1. The carport does not negatively impact the surrounding area and;
2. There is one other carport within close proximity to the subject property.

If the board chooses to grant the applicants request, he/she must abide to the following below:

Any construction or building allowed by this special exception must conform to the requirements set
forth by the Unified Development Code, the 2015 International Building Code, the Grand Prairie
Municipal Code of Ordinances, city adopted fire codes and with other applicable regulatory requirements
administered and/or enforced by the state and federal government. If a huilding permit has not been
applied for or issued within a ninety (90) day period or as the Board may specifically grant, the special
exceptions shall be deemed waived; and all rights there under terminated.

City of Grand Prairie

PAGE 3 of 3




Glll feCt)

Date: &7/2019  Time: 12:21:54PM

is data has been compl ed by the City of Grand
Praifie MIGS deparment. Variots dificial and
uncficad sowces were used to gather this
information. Every cfiort was made to ensure
the accuracy of ths data, however, no guarartee
lisghven orimpied as b the aceuracy of s&d data.




e DY ST
F - Y
cz20 Brewster 2

e e TEEE T
(_,i‘m-’i'l& Viaavie A,sf 7505 2,

= Back Yard

\BQMCQ

.

‘@fﬂfi@




BA190807

310 Nunez Drive
Variance — Accessory Structure

Height & Size
Zoning Board of Adju'stments & Appeals: August 19, 2019
Case Manager: Nyliah Acosta
Owner/Applicant: Pedro Guzman

SUMMARY

Requesting a 72 square foot variance from the 120 square foot size limitation, a 3 foot height variance from
the 10 foot height limitation outlined by “PD 201" to allow for a 192 square foot 13 foot tall accessory
structure, and a 13 foot rear yard setback variance from the required 20 feet to allow for an accessory
structure 7 feet from the rear property line, located at 310 Nunez Drive, legally described as W 72 Lot 2,
Block L, Sheffield Village PH 4 Addition, City of Grand Prairie, Tarrant County, Texas, zoned “PD-201"
Planned Development 201 District (Council District 2).

DISCUSSION

The applicant is requesting approval of a 72 square foot and 3 foot height variance and a 13 foot rear yard
setback variance. A single-family dwelling currently sits on the property. The property owner is seeking a
variance that would allow them to construct a 12x16x13 tall {192 square feet) accessory structure 7 feet
from the rear property line; because the property is within a Planned Development that has specific
guidelines in regards to accessory uses, a variance is required to waiver from the requirement. Otherwise,
the structure meets guidelines for general accessory structures in the Unified Development Code, with the
exception of the rear yard setback.

Subject to approval of this application, an approved building permit will be required prior to the final
inspection of the structure. As part of the building permit review process, Building Inspections will ensure
that the addition complies with all regulations.

PUBLIC NOTIFICATION

Legal notice of this item was published in the Fort Worth Star Telegram August 9th and August 18th.

Notices to property owners were placed in the City of Grand Prairie out-going-mail on August 9, 2019,

35 notices were sent, 0 were returned in favor, Q opposed, and the Grand Prairie Prize Acres Neighborhood
Interest Association did not respond.

City of Grand Prairie

PAGE I of 3




FINDINGS

As authorized in Section 1.11.7.4 of the UDC, the ZBA may grant variances and exceptions provided the
foliowing findings are met:

A. Such variance or exception will not substantially or permanently injure the appropriate use of
adjacent property in the same district.

Staff Evaluation: Staff believes that such variance will not substantially or permanently injure the
appropriate use of adjacent property in the same district.

B. such variance or exception will not adversely affect the health, safety or general welfare of the
public.

Staff Evaluation: Staff suggests that the variance will not adversely affect the health, safety or
general welfare of the public.

C. Such variance or exception will not be contrary to the public interest; and such variance or
exception will not authorize the operation of a use other than those uses specifically authorized for
the district in which the property for which the variance is sought is located.

Staff Evaluation: The proposed variance, if approved, will not authorize the operation of a use other
than those already altowed in “PD-140” planned Development 140 District.

D. Such variance or exception will be in harmony with the spirit and purpose of this ordinance.

Staff Evaluation: The granting of this variance will allow the homeowner to construct a storage
shed. Accessory structures are allowed and staff believes granting the variance does not disrupt the
spirit of the ordinance.

E. Such variance or exception will not alter the essential character of the district in which is located
the property for which the variance is sought.

Staff Evaluation: Staff does not believe that such variance will after the essential character of the
district as the structure will be located in the back yard, accessible from the afley. If approved, the
accessory structure would not be visible from street view. In addition, staff noted that there were
seventeen (17) homes with accessory structures within the 300 foot buffer. Four (4) of which have
permits, located at 222, 225, 305, and 401 Meforine Dr.

F. Such variance or exception will not substantially weaken the general purposes of the zoning
regulations established for the district in which the property is located.

staff Evaluation: Staff believes that such variance for an accessory structure will not substantially
weaken the general ptrpose of the underlying zoning district

__________——____—__——_—_—.—————————'———_——___ City of Grand Prairie
PAGE 2 of 3




G. The plight of the owner of the property for which the variance or exception is sought is due to
unique circumstances existing on the property, including but not limited to the area, shape or slope,
and the unigue circumstances were not created by the owner of the property and are not merely
financial, and are not due to or the resuit of general conditions in the district in which the property
is located.

Staff Evaluation: The unique circumstance is that the Planned Devefopment District specifies the
size of accessory structures.

H. The variance of exception is not a self-created hardship.
Staff Evaluation: Staff finds that the hardship is not self-created.

RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends Approvat of the requested variance in 8A190807 based on the following findings of fact:

1. The accessory structure does not detract from the character of the neighborhood; and
2. There are seventeen other accessory structures within ciose proximity.

i the board chooses to grant the applicants request, he/she must abide to the following below:

Any construction or building allowed by this variance must conform to the requirements set forth by the
Unified Development Code, the 2015 International Building Code, the Grand Prairie Municipal Code of
Ordinances, city adopted fire codes and with other applicable regulatory requirements administered
and/or enforced by the state and federal government. I a building permit has not been applied for or
issued within a ninety (90) day period or as the Board may specifically grant, the variance shall be
deemed waived; and all rights there under terminated.

——— e e City of Grand Prairie

PAGE 3 of 3




Mélorlne Dr

. L

1 s
Tl

[ wo / ' o o

| ' o
Date: 8/7/12019 Time: 12:55:41 PM

7/ 310 Nunez Dr

s data has bzen compled by the City of Grand
Prairie [T/@S depariment. Various official and
unoficil sowces were used lo gather this
information. Every effort was mada to ensure
the accuracy of ths data, however, no guarantee
isgiven ofimpled as b the accwacy of said data.




\ ; _ N o N
’329 N'«J:{\Q_;ﬁ. O( C\VC’A»\QL qi“"\i"’{(’_ \C\r_\\ 1}305/

fiouse

i

i

! L

.: |
H i ?
P
P 7
i e

PR i S—

= oy )
Lo oy ke £ /
.._)V‘{ % 2 - -
tonerth T8 L
¥ a
! oy F ] T
~ 5 > % (2. -3 16,- ,




BA190809

501 Stonehenge Drive
Variance — Accessory Structure

Size
Zoning Board of Adjustments & Appeals: August 19, 2019
Case Manager: Nyliah Acosta
Owner/Applicant: Alba Escobar

SUMIMARY
Requesting a 136 square foot variance, from the 120 square foot maximum, outlined by “PD 120" to allow
for a 256 square foot accessory structure, located at 501 Stonehenge Drive, legally described as Lot 44,

Block A, Park Square 2 Rep Addition, City of Grand Prairie, Dalias County, Texas, zoned “PD-120" Planned
Development 120 District {(Council District 3).

DISCUSSION

The applicant is requesting approval of a 136 square foot variance. A duplex currently sits on the property.
The property owner is seeking a variance that would allow them to keep an already constructed 16x16x10’
tall {256 sqft) accessory structure, because the property is within a Planned Development that has specific
guidelines in regards to accessory uses, a variance is required to waiver from the requirement.

Subject to approval of this application, an approved building permit will be required prior to the final
inspection of the structure. As part of the building permit review process, Building Inspections will ensure
that the addition complies with all regulations.

PUBLIC NOTIFICATION

Legal notice of this item was published in the Fort Worth Star Telegram August Sth and August 18th.

Notices to property owners were placed in the City of Grand Prairie out-going-mail on August 8, 2019.

70 notices were sent, 0 were returned in favor, 0 opposed, and there is no homeowners association.

FINDINGS

As authorized in Section 1.11.7.4 of the UDC, the ZBA may grant variances and exceptions provided the
following findings are met:

City of Grand Prairie
PAGE 1 of 3




A Such variance or exception will not substantially or permanently injure the appropriate use of
adjacent property in the same district.

Staff Evaluation: Staff believes that such variance will not substantially or permanently injure the
appropriate use of adjacent property in the same district.

B. Such variance or exception will not adversely affect the health, safety or general welfare of the
public.

Staff Evaluation: Staff suggests that the variance will not adversely affect the health, safety or
general welfare of the public.

C. Such variance or exception will not be contrary to the public interest; and such variance or
exception will not authorize the operation of a use other than those uses specifically authorized for

the district in which the property for which the variance is sought is located.

Staff Evaluation: The proposed variance, if approved, will not authorize the operation of a use other
than those glready allowed in “PD-120" Planned Development 120 District.

D. Such variance or exception will be in harmony with the spirit and purpose of this ordinance.

Staff Evaluation: The granting of this variance will affow the homeowner to keep a storage shed.
Accessory structures are allowed and staff believes granting the variance does not disrupt the spirit
of the ordinance.

|
i
g
!
i

E. Such variance or exception will not alter the essential character of the district in which is located
the property for which the variance is sought.

Staff Evaluation: Staff does not believe that such varidnce will alter the essential character of the
district as the structure will be located in the back yard, accessible from the alley. If approved, the
accessory structure would not be visible from street view. In addition, staff noted that there were
ten (10) other duplexes with accessory structures within the 300 foot buffer. Three of with have
permits (3051 Ferndale, 514 W Warrior Tri, and 522 W Warrior Trl).

F. Such variance or exception will not substantially weaken the general purposes of the zoning
regulations established for the district in which the property is located.

Staff Evaluation: Staff believes that such variance for an accessory structure will not substantiafly
weaken the general purpose of the underlying zoning district

G. The plight of the owner of the property for which the variance or exception is sought is due to
unique circumstances existing on the property, including but not limited to the area, shape or slope,
and the unigue circumstances were not created by the owner of the property and are not merely
financial, and are not due to or the result of general conditions in the district in which the property
is located.

e rrmn———  ——— ] Clty OfG]"and Prairie
PAGE 2 of 3




Staff Evaluation: The unique circumstance is that the Planned Development District specifies the
size of accessory structures.

H. The variance or exception is not a self-created hardship.
Staff Evaluation: Staff finds that the hardship is not self-created.

RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends Approval of the requested variance in BA190809 based on the following findings of fact:

1. The accessory structure does not detract from the character of the neighborhood; and
2. There are ten other accessory structures, within 300 ft.

If the board chooses to grant the applicants request, he/she must abide to the following below:
An additional permit fee will be paid.

Any construction or building allowed by this variance must conform to the requirements set forth by the
Unified Development Code, the 2015 International Building Code, the Grand Prairie Municipal Code of
Ordinances, city adopted fire codes and with other applicable regulatory requirements administered
and/or enforced by the state and federal government._If a building permit has not been applied for or
issued within a ninety (90) day period or as the Board may specifically grant, the variance shall be
deemed waived; and all rights there under terminated.

— e (j(y 0f Grand Praivie
PAGE 3 of 3



VAT

i il
~305 VB 0 5i3

j
1 i ik
+ i Rasgrere o ALV W 4 !

0809/501 Stonehenge Drive Dotes 8772010 Time: 3:47:15 PM

SRR BA19

wnoficel sources were used to gather Lhis %

o~ L __ Site Plans

TR

inbrmation, Every effort was made lo enswra
he accuracy of Lhis dala, however, no
[isgiven orimpbad as b lhe accuracy of said

s dala has baen compled by the Ciy of Grand
Praifa M/AS departnent. Various official and

ea
data.




PAGE 03

G21 MIKE BOWMAM, IMC
H#HOIB P.OOR/QDGE,

84/27/2017 ©3:61PM  B173F44936 _
> FromiBach Prarmaay K1 W, oo7aS 14630 S0AIRTIROVT a
e ’ : .
6'/ SUBURBAN SURVEYING COMPANY - ' boate 1" = 300
P. O, hoX 28213 . . i _
DALLAS, TEXAS. 75228 ‘ DArE: | 8-26-93
(214) 320-840] . . ;
SU*V!Y PLAY Jou y 14224

TO ALL PARTIES [NTERESTED IN PREMISES SURVEYED:
Thin I5 to certify that | Rave, this date, meds & caruful wnd nmuu uurvey an the ground of propury Iocated at

e, 501 STOMEHENGE mrw‘ , In the 2ty of . GRAND PRATRIE . Téxen, deacribed
City Blook Hoy e

wa followk:

L.at Ho, FORLY-TOUR. (44) : , Block No, .

: REBLAT OF PARK SIXIARE 1T, i iddition to the Cliy or GRAND_PRATRIE, DALLAS
—— of the Mep Rucorde

of
COUNTY , Toxes, accordlug to e MAP THEREOE  weorded e Volume —83240 . ut puye
DALLAS CUUNTY, Tuxda,

d *
AR IR BEST O MY KNOWLEDGE BHE COLLOWING BASEMENTS 20 NOT' AF‘I."D(IP THIS PROPEWLY:
EA&LMI’.N‘!' 10 LI'I‘Y 0[" (‘CoMNRDé’rI}ﬂERIE lmm»?&‘g IN V qp!}'l 87 F. 0798, DR T,

u I'D
SRR O AT i oA Rt - o o or

AFFRCTS 1
I.5.E

nd/or recuirements

-
=

commen

5t
2N
T
&
.lel %
SET un- .
ot :?"tj
U 18 ORAINAGE ;;%
v ® 5 ] 4 sead
28kt \o——UTILITY ESMT. ST
R I
. 5 &
PARTY —+ 3
WALL . e
v """“N:x = 2
LOT 49 d B
) @
.9 ¢
LOT 44 o
BLOCK A- )]
T \ ¥
= ' }\U 'IUJLC\ r\
CARPORT o=
R ol SR o
. b i A5 - M PR
X SET If' 418’

SUTILTY ESMET oy By

SMHTE PROFERTY: 1S NOT LOCATED (N A FLOOL PLAIN ACCORDING O THE FLOOD PLAIN
MAD OF THE CI1Y OF GRAND: PRAIRIE COMMUNIAY PANREL NUMHER 405472 0025 €, NAP

DALED 2~1-85.
Tha plat bervon I¥ u Lruw, correct, and stcurste reprandrtotlon of (he proparty au de(yrslavd by survey, the llsss nad dlusonalons
of vald propascy being ns nltculed by the plai; the wine, lochtlon, snd lype uf bulldlngs aed {aprovasouts are xa shown, kil lev
proveudaly belug within the bousdarles of the prmrm vl bauk Trpm proparty W (he dinfeaced Indicated, asd that the distanae

trom ths sesrest Inleteaciing eireet, br. m-i L' as ahovwa on wald plen,

TURKE ARE HO BNCROACHMENTY, COAFLICTH, OR PROTEURICRN, BXCERT A5 SHOW.

Mg survey was performed Lo eonnection wilh tho
crangaction Qoscrlibed in GF wo. 166239 of nnc'r“l'L,RﬂJ PROFE4S m\u\L
SAPECO LAND  Title CO. URE OF TIITS SURVEY Fok LARD BURVEYOR ;
FHY OTER AOIOss DROBY ANY (TRIIER PARTIFS SHALL f L" W
MR CEISER TSR OAHD TR UNDERGIGNED 18 M A Y~ u -
PRESTONSTULE 10 CPHERS RO ARY lf}n JWEEUTIMTHG O .

CIERERIOM,

itf{lbh!l l-\ll}‘lw!blllaovt

EMMETT J. Wi

e AL TEE ] TP

\ 3642

o

Pgofesmoegé
SURNS

i

Ci‘ty of Grand Prairie .
Building inspection



BA190810

2839 Ivy Glen Drive
Variance — Rear Yard Setback

Zoning Board of Adjustments & Appeals: August 19, 2019
Case Manager: Nytiah Acosta
Owner/Applicant: Brent & Sophia Crow
SUMMARY

Requesting a 10 foot rear yard setback variance from the 30 foot build line, to allow for a porch 20 feet from
the rear property line, located at 2839 Ivy Glen Drive, legally described as Lot 49, Block 1, vy Glen Addition,
City of Grand Prairie, Tarrant County, Texas, zoned “PD-278" Planned Development 278 District {Council
District 4).

DISCUSSION

The applicant is requesting approval of a 10 foot rear yard variance. A single-family home currently sits on
the property. The property owner is seeking a variance that would allow them to construct a screened
patio, because the property is within a Planned Development that has specific guidelines in regards to
sethacks for front entry garages. PD 278 states that for lots with front entry garages the minimum rear
setback is 20 feet. The 20 foot minimum was combined with the standard 10 foot rear yard setback for
residential lots. As a result, the property has a 30 foot platted setback in the rear of the property that the
proposed patio would encroach on.

Subject to approval of this application, an approved building permit will be required prior to the final
inspection of the structure. As part of the building permit review process, Building Inspections will ensure
that the addition complies with all regulations.

PUBLIC NOTIFICATION

Legal notice of this item was published in the Fort Worth Star Telegram August 9th and August 18th,

Notices to property owners were placed in the City of Grand Prairie out-going-mail on August 9, 2019.

30 notices were sent, 0 were returned in favor, 0 opposed, and the Homeowners Association of lvy Glen did
not respond.

FINDINGS

City of Grand Prairie

PAGE [ of 3




As authorized in Section 1.11.7.4 of the UDC, the ZBA may grant variances and exceptions provided the
following findings are met:

A,

Such variance or exception will not substantially or permanently injure the appropriate use of
adjacent property in the same district.

Staff Evaluation: Staff believes that such variance will not substantially or permanently injure the
appropriate use of adjacent property in the same district.

Such variance or exception will not adversely affect the health, safety or general welfare of the
public.

Staff Evaluation: Staff suggests that the variance will not adversely affect the heaith, safety or
general welfare of the public.

Such variance or exception will not be contrary to the public interest; and such variance or
exception will not authorize the operation of a use other than those uses specifically authorized for
the district in which the property for which the variance is sought is located.

Staff Evaluation: The proposed variance, if approved, will not authorize the operation of a use other
than those already alfowed in “PD-278" Planned Development 278 District.

Such variance or exception will be in harmony with the spirit and purpose of this ordinance.

Staff Evaluation: The granting of this variance will affow the homeowner to construct an enclosed
patio. Patios are allowed by right and staff believes granting the variance does not disrupt the spirit
of the ordinance.

Such variance or exception will not alter the essential character of the district in which is located
the property for which the variance is sought.

Staff Evaluation: Staff does not believe that such variance will alter the essential character of the
district as the structure will be focated in the back yard and directly behind the property is Corps of
Engineers land and is likely to remain undeveloped.

Such variance or exception will not substantially weaken the general purposes of the zoning
regulations established for the district in which the property is located.

Staff Evaluation: Staff befieves that such variance for a patio will not substantially weaken the
general purpose of the underlying zoning district

The plight of the owner of the property for which the variance or exception is sought is due to
unigque circumstances existing on the property, including but not limited to the area, shape or slope,
and the unique circumstances were not created by the owner of the property and are not merely
financial, and are not due to or the result of general conditions in the district in which the property
is located.

e — e City of Grand Prairie

PAGE2 of 3




Staff Evaluation: The unique circumstance is that the Planned Development District specifies
sethacks for front entry garages.

H. The variance or exception is not a self-created hardship.r

Staff Evaluation: Staff finds that the hardship is not self-created due to the 20 ft rear vard setback
per the PD, and the standard 10 ft rear yard setback. As a result, the property has a 30 ft platted
setback which commandeers a large portion of the backyard of the 115 foot deep lot, also taking
into consideration the 25 ft building line setback at the front of the property as well.

RECOMIMENDATION
Staff recommends Approval of the requested variance in BA190810 based on the following findings of fact:
1. The patio does not negatively impact the neighberhood.

I the board chooses to grant the applicants request, he/she must abide to the following below:

Any construction or building allowed by this variance must conform to the requirements set forth by the
Unified Development Code, the 2015 International Building Code, the Grand Prairie Municipal Code of
Ordinances, city adopted fire codes and with other applicable regulatory requirements administered
and/or enforced by the state and federal government._If a building permit has not been applied for or

issued within a ninety (90) day period or as the Board may specifically grant, the variance shall be
deemed waived; and all rights there under terminated.

— == (Uil of Grand Prairie

PAGE3 of 3



Date: 8/7/2019  Time: 3:56:17 PM

BA190810/2839 Ivy Glen Dr

s data has been compled by the City of Grand
Prairio T/AS deparment. Various offici and
noficil souces were usedto gather ths
inbrmation. Every dbnwasmadeloensun
he accuracy of ths dala, hoaever, no
isgiven arimpliad &s b Ihe accuracy sziddala

_ Site Plans

ﬂéliand

TRETN A




diZ 18 ‘ALiD
$534A0Y

NOILYAZT3

WO 0T

ANWYN LNFTO
SIOCCOOK . XXIKXIKK

INaidicod S8noH DNILeE INRGLOO 3ShoH SNIISxE

av'd IIXINCD

1 -
T

S DU W U SO S N |

TTYM SIANS SO

YOS (OO IR CIIEEIRTR (ORI (I E @
] I T | | o 9
£
= b ! ! | ! ! i ;
R i T BN NSO Ectiws i
AZESIZA ﬂ 1 ﬁﬁ
v ! ! ! 1 f ! 3 8
SALYE WOLSND VAL [ W
dNOHDrsa ﬂ.
&Q pardeid e T =
: TaivH NI v WY3S TyRiLonel e
[T p——" . [T} Ty
4G praaddy !
INRGLOO BSNOH DNILSIXE ININLOOS FSNOH DNILSIXE % e #
WFib = 3WIS oy oaia o o ;
Mot ueiy O OD oy OOToom
IWSOdOHd LOAMOHd ﬁ b .F
1 f !
| — =]
ANl COod ISNoH DNLLSIXE
LNI=dLOOd 2enoH DNILSIXE
Ay M 3 e i i o powu dew e6 T 0Uay|P |wooL Of IRg) "rmeied [[SgR LOMEUBL|E Uog Lk i) "EUSISURLIP udjtlm Sk U P SL) kO KD| 3 [0 Jika i 1 SIRUAEDKKIT B8 EUOTUSS B iy
RUEIRTIN AR




SNOILV AT

‘ALID

o
ST
o<
o J |
mz
(7))

BZ
m

diZ1s

i
|

panayosd 5
usquagdap paziuIneury

Wil =308
I Ui )
WS0dOud BmamL




BA190812

510 S Holiday Drive
Special Exception —Two Carports

Zoning Board of Adjustments & Appeals: August 19, 2019
Case Manager: Nyliah Acosta
Owner/Applicant: ' Hilario Gallegos
SUMMARY

Requesting a special exception for two (2) corrugated metal carports, located at 510 S Holiday Drive, legally
described as Lot 21, Block 16, Park Valley 2, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned “SF-3” Single-
Family Three Residential District {Council District 3).

DISCUSSION
The applicant is seeking approval to construct a 20x20x10° (400 sgft) carport in front of the primary
structure, and a second 40x10x10’ tall (400 sqft) carport to the side of the primary structure. A single-family

dwelling currently sits on the property. The carports will be accessible from the front driveway, and the
applicant will likely pave over the front yard for access to the second carport, as a second curb cut would

not be approved

Subject to approval of this application, an approved building permit will be required prior to the final
inspection of the structure. As part of the building permit review process, Building Inspections will ensure
that the addition complies with all regulations.

PUBLIC NOTIFICATION
Legal notice of this item was published in the Fort Worth Star Telegram August 9" and August 18"
Notices to property owners were placed in the City of Grand Prairie out-going-mail on August o™ 2019.

45 notices were sent, 0 were returned in favor, 0 opposed, and there is not homeowners association.

FINDINGS
As authorized in Section 1.11.7.4 of the UDC, the ZBA may grant variances and exceptions provided the

following findings are met:

A, Such variance or exception will not substantially or permanently injure the appropriate use of
adjacent property in the same district.

—eee Uty of Girand Praivie
PAGE 1 of 3




Staff Evaluation: Approving such exception will not substantially or permanently injure the
appropriate use of adjacent property in the same district.

B. Such variance or exception wili not adversely affect the health, safety or general welfare of the
public.

Staff Evaluation: Staff suggests that the variance will not adversely affect the health, safety or
general weffare of the public.

C. Such variance or exception will not be contrary to the public interest; and such variance or
exception will not authorize the operation of a use other than those uses specifically authorized for
the district in which the property for which the variance is sought is located.

Staff Evaluation: The proposed variance, if approved, will not authorize the operation of a use other
than those already alfowed in “SF-3” Singfe-Family Three Residential District.

D. Such variance or exception will be in harmony with the spirit and purpose of this ordinance.

Staff Evaluation: The granting of this exception will allow the homeowner to protect their vehicle
from inclement weather. Staff suggests that the exception is in harmony with the spirit and purpose
of this ordinance.

E. Such variance or exception will not after the essential character of the district in which is located
the property for which the variance is sought.

Staff Evaluation: Approving the exception will likely after the character of the district in which the
subject property is located. It is not typical to have two carports visible from the front of the house.

Carports are not heavily present in the neighborhood, however, there is one permitted metal carport
focated at 609 S Holiday Drive, approximately 600 feet away from the subject property

F. Such variance or exception will not substantially weaken the general purposes of the zoning
regulations established for the district in which the property is located.

Staff Evaluation: Staff pelieves that such exception will not substantiolly weaken the general
purpose of the underlying zoning district. ‘

G. The plight of the owner of the property for which the variance or exception is sought is due to
unique circumstances existing on the property, including but not limited to the area, shape or slope,
and the unique circumstances were not created by the owner of the property and are not merely
financial, and are not due to or the result of general conditions in the district in which the property
is located.

Staff Evaluation: Staff cannot find that the property owner has a hardship that is o unique
circumstance of the property.

_____.——_________—__——___————————————-——'—___——-'—_— City of Grand Prairie
PAGE2 of 3




H. The variance or exception is not a self-created hardship.
Staff Evaluation: Stoff finds that the hardship is self-created.

RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends Denial of the requested variance in 8A190812 with an alternate recommendation for
one corrugated metal carport based on the following findings of fact:

1. Two corrugated metal carports would detract from the character of the neighborhood and is not
consistent with the established character of the neighborhood.

If the board chooses to grant the applicants request, he/she must abide to the following below:

Any construction or building allowed by this variance must conform to the requirements set forth by the
Unified Development Code, the 2015 International Building Code, the Grand Prairie Municipal Code of
Ordinances, city adopted fire codes and with other applicable regulatory requirements administered
and/or enforced by the state and federal government. If a building permit has not been applied for or
issued within a ninety {90) day period or as the Board may specifically grant, the special exceptions shall
be deemed waived; and all rights there under terminated.

______—_—_——————__=—————_ City of Grand Prairie
PAGE 3 of 3




o pph M"W

e i e

s data has baen compled by the Clly of Grand
Prairie M/GIS deparimant, Vanous officiel and
unoficd sources wero used to gather this
information, Every effort was made lo ensure
he accuracy of this dala, however, no guaranice
isgiven arimpled as b the accuracy of said data.




Vot e

}
i : N oigdd

B e o i
f




BA190811

706 E Springdale
Variance — Accessory Strucure
Detached Garage Size, Material

& Setback
Zoning Board of Adjustments & Appeals: ‘ August 19, 2019
Case Manager: Nyliah Acosta
Owner/Applicant: Arnulfo Moreno

SUMMARY

1. Requesting a 62 square foot variance from the 750 square foot size limitation, to allow for a 812
square foot detached garage. '

2. A 4 foot rear yard setback variance from the required 10 feet, to allow for a detached garage and
accessory structure 6 feet from the rear property line.

3. A special exception for the use of corrugated metal as building material from the 100% minimum

masonry content.
Located at 706 E Springdale, legally described as Lot 5, Block 4, Lake Park Village 1 Addition, City of Grand
Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned “SF-3” Single-Family Three Residential {Council District 3).

DISCUSSION

The applicant is requesting approval of several variances for the material, size, and rear yard setback for a
detached garage and accessory structure (rear setback only). A single-family dwelling currently sits on the
property and the detached garage and accessory structure are existing.

Subject to approval of this application, an approved building permit will be required prior to the final
inspection of the structure. As part of the building permit review process, Building inspections wilt ensure
that the addition complies with all regulations.

PUBLIC NOTIFICATION

Legal notice of this item was published in the Fort Worth Star Telegram August Sth and August 18th.

Notices to property owners were placed in the City of Grand Prairie out-going-mail on August 9, 2019,

79 notices were sent, O were returned in favor, 0 opposed and 2 calls were received for general information.
There is no homeowners association.

—_———— — City of Grand Prairie
PAGE I of 3




FINDINGS
As authorized in Section 1.11.7.4 of the UDC, the ZBA may grant variances and exceptions provided the

following findings are met:

A. Such variance or exception will not substantially or permanently injure the appropriate use of
adjacent property in the same district.

Staff Evaluation: Approving such variance may potentially injure the appropriate use of adjacent
property in the same district.

B. Such variance or exception will not adversely affect the health, safety or general welfare of the
public.

Staff Evaluation: Staff suggests that the variance may adversely affect the health, safety or general
welfare of the public. A detached garage of this size may provide the opportunity for additional uses
that would not be alfowed in a residentially zoned district. It should be noted that this case was
brought forth by Code Enforcement, due to complaints of a neighbors stating the garage was being
used for auto repair.

C. Such variance or exception will not be contrary to the public interest; and such variance or
exception will not authorize the operation of a use other than those uses specifically authorized for
the district in which the property for which the variance is sought is located.

Staff Evaluation: The proposed variance, if approved, will not authorize the operation of a use other
than those already allowed in “SF-3” Single-Family Three Residential District. But as noted in “B”
above, structures of this size often lend themselves to non-residential uses.

D. such variance or exception will be in harmony with the spirit and purpose of this ordinance.

Staff Evaluation: The granting of this variance will allow the applicant to maintain an already
constructed corrugated metal detached garage and accessory structure, and be in compliance with
the City of Grand Prairie’s UDC. Staff suggests that the variance is not in harmony with the spirit
and purpose of this ordinance, or the overall welfare of the public.

E. Such variance or exception will not alter the essential character of the district in which is located
the property for which the variance is sought.

Staff Evaluation: Approving the variance will not drastically alter the essential character of the
district in which the subject property is located. Both structures are focated in the rear yard behind a
fence, however the detached garage can be seen from the front yard due to the height of the
detached garage being taller than the fence. Staff suggests that the structure be reduced in size,
and refaced with materials similar to the house.

F. such variance or exception will not substantially weaken the general purposes of the zoning
regulations established for the district in which the property is located.

e City of Grand Prairie
PAGE 2 of 3




Staff Evaluation: Staff believes that such varionce may weaken the general purpose of the
underlying zoning districts regufations. The purpose of the height, size, setback and material
requirements are to create uniformity, promote compatibility of uses, and overall safety and welfare
of the public. The accessory structure is not uniform with the neighborhood, and could introduce
incompatible uses in a residence.

G. The plight of the owner of the property for which the variance or exception is sought is due to
unique circumstances existing on the property, including but not limited to the area, shape or slope,
and the unique circumstances were not created by the owner of the property and are not merely
financial, and are not due to or the result of general conditions in the district in which the property
is located.

Staff Evaluation: Staff cannot find that the property owner hos o hardship that is a unique
circumstance of the property.

H. The variance or exception is not a self-created hardship.
Staff Evaluation: Staff finds that the hardship is self-created.

RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends Denial with an alternate recommendation to grant the 4 foot rear yard setback for the
detached garage and accessory structure, and a detached garage constructed of masonry, or similar
material to the house no larger than 750 square feet. The denial with aiternate recommendation of the
requested variance in BA190811 is based on the following findings of fact:

1. Approving such variance may potentially injure the appropriate use of adjacent property in the

same district and;
2. Such variance may weaken the general purpose of the underlying zoning districts regulations.

If the board chooses to grant the applicants request, he/she must abide to the following below:

Any construction or buiiding allowed by this variance must conform to the requirements set forth by the
Unified Development Code, the 2015 International Building Code, the Grand Prairie Municipal Code of
Ordinances, city adopted fire codes and with other applicable regulatory requirements administered
and/or enforced by the state and federal government. If a building permit has not been applied for or
issued within a ninety (90) day period or as the Board may specifically grant, the special exceptions shall
be deemed waived; and all rights there under terminated.

City of Grand Prairie

PAGE 3 of 3




B [2 628 [

2630 263 3

g

" Trinidad Dr, :
¥, N A s - ey

' Lasala
R

i< ot
Ry

I
o
A'I_UL.‘I

S Beit Lioy: Rd

SantaRitaDr 7
o
ta Monica Dr

Santa

- g )

ale

2 :
Dr Date: 8712010 Time: 4:21:00 PM

o o
BA190811/ 706 E Springd

s data has been compded by the Cty of Grand
Praitie M/GS depariment. Vanaus official and
molicel sources were used to galher this 5 ki _
inbmmation. Every efbri was made lo ensire b # E s
e accuracy of this data, hoxever, no antes g
isgiven orimpled as b the accuracy sad dala. TR NS Tt Slte PIanS




J— e

i BLK,,J_&Q L7 -5 Cvf‘m_‘v’\d P‘fc.f.n‘{‘li: 7 X
i J5052
| -
LoT DESCRIPTIOW oPr CET
I & FENCE — — — — —
1 frana” T 26’
6 DIMENSIONS g ? —y i i E
| 6 LaT SIzE (80W) (hlGD) STORAGE | f
[ e LIVING cavea: {600 FT2 Hi 5 st
e Scale? 1-Tuch = 10¢T (2pr: Gdrege
! Ysr0” T—— > i Avea 7’:(%‘\\)-?/! 9
| ¢ co
l S TORAGE
| pals” 23 38
l’ Ha ' .
— 27 — 7oeFr >
l . - &,
' L -
i -53-' /:—? !il" 1
18’5 o
* “5
l ) '
277
7/
|
} ) i3
| HOoUSE
l ’e{‘?/‘ 7 &
|
' j — 137 e
I
l
!- [ NN, N
1
|,
| ;
:_‘97, o DRiE way
| — 18 4
| 1




W

e £ % 1% b B LN LY S N Y L} P e e premrmT ST T

; N , i GRAND PRAIRIE TX.

.iPu_K-! LT~ 8§ r 715052

r‘— i A Sr— -"w—" y— ‘:-:—- ———i 4 g p— T A o 1=} s B —— ) | e e Sr— A 1 0.y p—— et . 1 S pp— M- . | e e

! Lo AQRNGE DescRIPTIon

i 8 Avea- B12rr >

1 v i3fix (oo} P FCh

i ® Roli deer heiahr w0 FT ;

 WidHth 13 Y S FORAGE

] ® Door. heigr- 7' 87 width e s

[ CARAGE

‘ ‘. '

l A

{ LrafALE

l ,"3%3’ Yoof pifch

L [\

[

| | 3

1 I3Fr T )

[ MEYSHT 7"82/' 1o” n

l L | "i’_ T. T o _
leé. | fé?'S" 3 -

i 1 wroTe E

l.

i

I‘ / ol s

1

i

l

P ]

*-

|

|

) /

|

b M i9

] (V] 7" }’1_

tf |

| DRIVEWAY >3

| | |

IR 4 y




City Hall: 317 College St Grand Prairie, TX
MEETING AGENDA
Zoning Board of Adjustments and Appeals
DATE: July 15,2019
BRIEFING: .

The staff will brief the board and preview the cases on tonight’s agenda. Board members will have the opportunity
to ask questions that may facilitate the meeting and presentation of the cases. No action will be taking place during
the briefing

CALL TO ORDER A0 BN

The Zoning Board of Adjustments and Appeals is appointed by the City Council to consider variances, exceptions
and appeals as prescribed by the City of Grand Prairie’s Unified Development Code. In accordance with Section
211.009 of the Local Government of the State of Texas and Article 1 of the Unified Development Code of the City
of Grand Prairie, the concurring vote of seven members of the Board is necessary to decide in favor of an applicant
on any matter on which the Board has jurisdiction. Members of the public may address the Board on items listed on
the agenda under Public Hearing Items

Board Members In Attendance:

Eric Hedin, Chairperson v/, Barry Sandacz, Vice Chairperson X, Anthony Langston X,
Clayton Hutchins X, Heather Mazac [, Stacy White 1, Vance Roper X,
Debbie Hubacek X, Tracy Owens X, David Baker[X,

Ralph Castro*[, Tommy Land X,

INVOCATION:

David Baker




led the invocation
APPROVAL OF MINUTES:

Barry Sandacz  motioned fo approve last month’s minutes

David Baker seconded motion
9 yays 0 nays
PUBLIC HEARING:
1. CASE BA190705 NUMBER:

Requesting a special exception to allow for an electronic message sign within 200 feet of
a residentially zoned district, located at 401 W Warrior Trail, legally described as Tract
21, of the Edward O’Connor Abstract, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas,
zoned “SE-1” Single-Family one Residential District.

Applicant / Chuck Stocker ~ Spokesperson:

610 S Holiday Dr

» Address:
Grand Prairie, TX 75

The applicant stated original sign was a manual and was damaged due to
someone crashing into to it and would like the convenience of an electronic sign.

Any comments from Spokesman:
Any questions from Board:

T

h
The following persons spoke in favor of the application:

Will the sign be dimmable? —Yes




The following persons noted their support for the application:
T
he following evidence was presented to the Board by those in favor of the case:

The following persons noted their opposition to the application:

The following evidence was presented to the Board by those in opposition to the case:

The applicant did or did not speak in rebuttal.

After consideration of the evidence, the Board discussed the evidence and the documentation on

the record.

The Board makes the following findings, indicated by a check or x in the blank next to the
finding:

X Proper notification was done in accordance with the statutes and ordinances.

The decision of the City building or administrative official to deny the permit or
construction was in error, and the permit should be granted.

A variance, if granted, is not contrary to the public interest, and, due to special
conditions, a literal enforcement of the ordinance would result in unnecessary hardship, and the
granting of the variance would be in the spirit of the ordinances and substantial justice would be

done.

X  The variance or exception will not substantially or permanently injure the appropriate
use of adjacent property in the same district.



X The variance or exception will not adversely affect the health, safety, or general welfare
of the public.

X The variance or exception will not be contrary to public interest.

X The variance or exception will not authorize the operation of a use other than those uses
specifically authorized for the district in which the property for which the variance is sought is
located.

X _The variance or exception will be in harmony with the spirit and purpose of the Unified
Development Code and all other ordinances of the City.

X The variance or exception will not alter the essential character of the district in which is
located the property for which the variance is sought.

The variance or exception will not substantially weaken the general purposes of the
zoning regulations established for the district in which the property is located,

The plight of the owner of the property for which the variance or exception is sought is
due to unique circumstances existing on the property, including, but not limited to, area, shape or
slope, and the unique circumstances were not created by the owner of the property, and are not
merely financial, and are not due to or the result of general conditions in the district in which the

property is located.

The variance or exception is not a self-created hardship.

Any additional findings:

Motion to close to the public hearing Barry Sandacz by

David Baker




2" the Motion by

Motion to Approve Case by Barry Sandacz

2" the David Baker Motion by

Motion  to  Table  Case  was 9 0 Approved/Denied
yays to Nays «

Members that objected:

2. CASE BA190707 NUMBER:

a. Requesting a 72 square foot variance, from the 120 square foot maximum to allow
for a 192 square foot accessory structure.

b. A 2 foot height variance from the 10 foot height limitation outlined by “PD 188" to
allow for a 12 foot tall accessory structure.

c. A 6 foot rear yard setback variance from the required 10 feet, to allow for an
accessory structure 4 feet from the rear property line.

d. A 1 foot side yard setback variance from the required 5 feet, to allow for an
accessory structure 4 feet from the side property line.

Located at 602 Wolcott Lane, legally described as Lot 9, Block 2, Walingford Village 2
Addition, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned “PD-188"” Planned
Development 188 District.

Applicant / Joaquin Castillo Spokesperson:

602 Wolcott

Address:

Grand Prairie,




The applicant stated the shed was built for his tools

Any comments from Spokesman:
Any questions from Board:

T
h
e following persons spoke in favor of the application:

‘When was the shed built? — Two years ago

The following persons noted their support for the application:

T
h
e following evidence was presented to the Board by those in favor of the case:

The following persons noted their opposition to the application:

The following evidence was presented to the Board by those in opposition to the case:

After consideration of the evidence, the Board discussed the evidence and the documentation on
the record.

The Board makes the following findings, indicated by a check or x in the blank next to the
finding:



X Proper notification was done in accordance with the statutes and ordinances.

The decision of the City building or administrative official to deny the permit or
construction was in error, and the permit should be granted.

A variance, if granted, is not contrary to the public interest, and, due to special
conditions, a literal enforcement of the ordinance would result in unnecessary hardship, and the
granting of the variance would be in the spirit of the ordinances and substantial justice would be
done.

X The variance or exception will not substantially or permanently injure the appropriate
use of adjacent property in the same district.

X The variance or exception will not adversely affect the health, safety, or general welfare
of the public.

X The variance or exception will not be contrary to public interest.

X The variance or exception will not authorize the operation of a use other than those uses
specifically authorized for the district in which the property for which the variance is sought is

located.

X The variance or exception will be in harmony with the spirit and purpose of the Unified
Development Code and all other ordinances of the City.

X The variance or exception will not alter the essential character of the district in which is
located the property for which the variance is sought.



zoning regulations established for the district in which the property is located;

The variance or exception will not substantially weaken the general purposes of the

The plight of the owner of the property for which the variance or exception is sought is

due to unique circumstances existing on the property, including, but not limited to, area, shape or
slope, and the unique circumstances were not created by the owner of the property, and are not
merely financial, and are not due to or the result of general conditions in the district in which the

property is located.

The variance or exception is not a self-created hardship.

Any additional findings:

N/A

The applicant did or did not speak in rebuttal.

Motion to close to the public hearing  Barry Sandacz by

an the Motion David Baker by

Motion to BarrySandacz  Approve Case by

2" the TracyOwens  Motion by

Motion to Table Case was 8

yays to Nays

The public hearing was closed.

3. CASE NUMBER: BAI%0708

Larry Hix

Approved/Denied



Applicant / Spokesperson:

Requesting a special exception to allow for a carport, located at 3625 Haystack Drive, legally
described as Lot 13, Block 2, Parkway Estates Addition, City of Grand Prairie, Dalias
County, Texas, zoned “PD-100" Planned Development- 100 District.

3625 Haystack Dr

. Address:
Grand Prairie, TX

The applicant stated he would to build a 20’ X 20’ carport and is willing to go
with staff recommendation of using masonry product and feels would help
improve the neighborhood appeal.

Any comments from Spokesman:
Any questions from Board: N/A

ThThe following persons spoke in favor of the application:

The following persons noted their support for the application:
Mike Del Bosque

The following evidence was presented to the Board by those in favor of the case:

The following persons noted their opposition to the application:
Michael Shehan, Otis and Jane Dixon

The following evidence was presented to the Board by those in opposition to the case:

After consideration of the evidence, the Board discussed the evidence and the documentation on
the record.




The Board makes the following findings, indicated by a check or x in the blank next to the
finding;:

X Proper notification was done in accordance with the statutes and ordinances.

The decision of the City building or administrative official to deny the permit or
construction was in error, and the permit should be granted.

A variance, if granted, is not contrary to the public interest, and, due to special
conditions, a literal enforcement of the ordinance would result in unnecessary hardship, and the
granting of the variance would be in the spirit of the ordinances and substantial justice would be
done.

X The variance or exception will not substantially or permanently injure the appropriate
use of adjacent property in the same district.

X  The variance or exception will not adversely affect the health, safety, or general welfare
of the public.

X The variance or exception will not be contrary to public interest.

X The variance or exception will not authorize the operation of a use other than those uses
specifically authorized for the district in which the property for which the variance is sought is

{ocated.

X The variance or exception will be in harmony with the spirit and purpose of the Unified
Development Code and all other ordinances of the City.

X The variance or exception will not alter the essential character of the district in which is
located the property for which the variance is sought.



The variance or exception will not substantially weaken the general purposes of the
zoning regulations established for the district in which the property is located;

The plight of the owner of the property for which the variance or exception is sought is
due to unique circumstances existing on the property, including, but not limited to, area, shape or
slope, and the unique circumstances were not created by the owner of the property, and are not
merely financial, and are not due to or the result of general conditions in the district in which the
property is located.

The variance or exception is not a self-created hardship.

The applicant did or did not speak in rebuttal.

Motion to close to the public hearing Barry Sandacz by

2" the Motion David Baker by

Motion to Barry Sandacz  Approve Case by

2" the David Baker Motion by

Motion  to  Table  Case  was 5 4 Approved/Denied
yays to Nays
Members that objected:

Hutchins, Owens, Baker, Land

The public hearing was closed.



Citizens Comments:

New Business:

Tommy Land  motioned to adjourn the meeting.

seconded.

All were in agreement.

Meeting adjourned _7:24  at pm.




